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Date August 18, 2017 
To:  All Bidders 
RE:  Glenridge Landfill Gas Collection System Decommissioning  
 Our File Number 2017-RFP-30 
 
 

ADDENDUM # 2 
 

Questions and Answers 
 
 
Q1: Can all meetings during the Project Initiation phase and Design phase be held 

via conference call? 
 
A1: It is the Region’s preference is for the meetings to be held in person.  Having said 

that, the Region will accept conference calls for all meetings except those at the end 
of each design phase that will be utilized to review the deliverables required.  The 4 
stages can be found on the bottom of Page 41 of the RFP.  

 
Q2: The RFP indicates that the Successful proponent shall allow for a total of 50 

hours for general contract administration.  The RFP goes on to describe what 
duties are to be completed as part of this contract administration – which 
includes shop drawing review.  In Section VI of the Summary of Fees and 
Disbursements form that needs to be filled there are separate line items for 
“contract administration” and “shop drawing” review.  Are some of the 50 
hours to be allocated to “contract administration” and some of the 50 hours 
allocated to “shop drawing review”?  Can you confirm if the 50 hours is 
supposed to cover off both contract administration and shop drawing review?  
This becomes important as this is included in the financial evaluation. 

 
A2: The 50 hours is intended to cover both the shop drawing reviews and contract 

administration duties. To clarify the bid, assume 50 hours of Contract Administration 
and assume 0 hours shop drawings.  

 
Q3: In the Summary of Fees and Disbursements form (under Section VI), there are 

line items for “inspection” and “specialist inspection”.  The RFP indicates that 
the Successful Proponent should assume 450 hours for a construction 
inspector to be on-site.  This will be included under the “inspection” line item.  
Can the Region indicate what they are anticipating for “Specialist Inspection”?  
Would this only be required if the Successful Proponent needs to hire an 
outside sub-consultant to review particular components of the 
decommissioning work?  Does the Region anticipate specialty engineering 
required for this? 

 
A3: Proponents are to bid the 450 hours for VI. Contract Administration and Construction 

Inspection, 3. Inspection.  Specialist Inspection was included in the event that a sub-
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consultant was required to inspect all/part of the construction works. If a Proponent 
determines that a sub-consultant is required to inspect the works, then the costs 
should be bid within this section.   

 
 
Q4: The scope of the Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) Study is unclear.  Since 

there is a line item for “SUE Investigation” on the Pricing Form, a better 
understanding of the scope would be helpful.  As part of the base scope of 
work, it is assumed that the Successful Proponent will arrange for Ontario One 
Call in order to locate utilities.  Under what circumstances would the 
Successful Proponent need to retain a sub-contractor to complete a SUE?  
Perhaps this would be determined based on the results of the Ontario One Call.  
Comcor feels that the cost for an SUE investigation should not be included in 
the evaluated pricing.  Alternatively, the Region could indicate that all bidder’s 
need to include an allowance of $5,000 for an SUE if it becomes necessary as 
determined during the design process.   Please advise.   

 
A4: Since there were only two Proponents at the Mandatory Bidders Meeting, the Region 

knows that both have extensive experience with landfill gas, the associated 
regulations and codes.  To that end, the Region reiterates the discussions from the 
Bidders Meeting.   

 
 Since it is incumbent upon the Proponents to evaluate the best method of 

decommissioning the Landfill Gas Collection and Flaring System (LGCFS), it is also 
the responsibility of the Proponents to define the scope of the SUE Investigation.  
Should a Proponent determine that the best option is to remove underground piping 
(as opposed to i.e., grouting and abandoning in place), the SUE investigation will be 
more extensive to ensure that there are no impacts to any other on-Site 
infrastructure.  If the reverse is true, then a Proponent may wish to reduce the scope 
of the SUE Investigation.  If the Proponent feels that Ontario One Call is appropriate, 
then the Proponent shall adjust their costs accordingly. 

 
 In summary, the wording in Appendix D, Section 1.3 Subsurface Utilitiy Engineering 

is appropriate and the Region is not amending it or the requirements to carry a cost.  
The Region is ensuring the responsibility to locate infrastructure on-Site lies with the 
Proponent and that the level of detail required is commensurate with the Proponents 
planned scope of work. 

 
Q5: If the Successful Proponent is required to provide pricing for an SUE 

Investigation, please advise us as to the extent of the area that will be required 
– would this be required over the entire landfill? 

 
A5: See response to Q4.  
 
Q6: Page 52 of the RFP states that a Commissioning Manager should be onsite for 

testing and commissioning.  There is also reference to start-up, testing, 
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training and commissioning.  However, all functioning components of the 
Odour Control Facility and Landfill Gas Facility will be removed.  It is unclear 
what training, testing or commissioning would be required.  Please clarify. 

 
A6: The scope of work that the Region starts with in every RFP is the same.  Every 

attempt is made to ensure the scope of work is reflective of the project being 
undertaking.  The two bullets on Page 52 of the RFP can be deleted and/or ignored. 

 
Q7: Page 52/53 of the RFP describes a warranty period of 12 months.  Can the 

Region provide details on what may fall under the Warranty Period?   There 
would be no new infrastructure installed as part of the project to warranty.    

 
A7: Despite the fact that there is no new infrastructure, there may be a quality of work 

issues.  For example, should the Successful Proponent determine that the best way 
to deal with the underground piping is to purge it, grout it and abandon it in place, 
what if gas is emitted at the terminus of a pipe or the pipe is not properly 
decommissioned.  This includes any other equipment that requires decommissioning  
as part of the works.  The warranty period would include any infrastructure that is not 
removed, or had works completed.  

 
Q8: Part 1, Section 2 c) requires the percentage availability of each technical 

project team member and Section 4 f) mentions that the schedule should 
include the person who will be conducting the work, the level of effort, how the 
work will be carried out and the hours required.  Also the detailed time/task 
matrix requires a percentage of the project team members time committed to 
the project as compared to the total hours of work; and the percentage of the 
project team members time committed to the project as compared to the total 
amount of time the consultant has committed to the project. Please confirm if a 
table showing the percentage of all the project team members compared to the 
total hours of work is sufficient. 

 
A8: The Region has requested that Proponent’s report the percentage availability and 

percent of time committed to the project for each individual.  This is intentional.  As 
explained during the Bidders Meeting, the Region is being as prescriptive as possible 
with the RFP submission requests to ensure that the same information is received 
from all Proponents.  This will allow the submissions to be evaluated consistently.  
Furthermore, the request for this level of detail ensures that members named to the 
Project Team are making a valuable contribution to the end product of the project. 
The Region kindly requests that the information in Part 1 Section 2c) and 4f) be 
provided in the format requested. 

 
Q9: Please confirm the as-built drawings for the flaring system, fan house and 

odour control facility are available in CAD format. 
A9: The Region has attached as Appendix A, pdf drawings of the Odour Control Facility 

from the Operations and Maintenance Manual. The as-built/tender drawings for 
different phases of the LGCFS are attached as Appendix B.  The CAD files will be 
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provided to the Successful Proponent 
 

Q10: Please confirm if the existing buildings will remain at the site or need to be 
decommissioned. 

 
A10: The existing buildings will be decommissioned and removed from the site.  
  
Q11: Will the Region surveyors be available to provide a topographic survey to 

provide assistance during construction and undertake the update site 
conditions survey after the construction is completed or do we need to include 
that cost in our scope of work. 

 
A11: Please include costs to cover all sub-consultants required to complete the scope of 

work outlined in the RFP.  At this time, Waste Management staff is unable to 
determine if our internal survey staff will have the capacity to complete the survey 
requirements.   

 
Q11: One additional clarification about Appendix D, Section 1.2 mentions: 
  
 The Consultant will also determine the requirements for additional 

investigations identified in the report(s), or as a result of design changes 
requested by Niagara Region, and prepare additional TORs as per the 
requirements identified above. Additional costs associated with subsequent 
investigations will be negotiated between the Consultant and Niagara Region. 
The Successful Proponent will retain the Expert Consultant directly. Therefore, 
the cost of these works IS to be included in the proposal. The Successful 
Proponent will be the main contact with all Expert Consultants, and will be 
responsible for directing those Consultants as required. The Successful 
Proponent will be responsible for coordinating the requirements of the 
investigation with those of the design.  

 
 At this point is uncertain what additional investigations will be required and 

therefore to provide a cost for this work as part of this proposal wouldn't be 
accurate.  

 
A11: See response to Question # 4.  

 
 Any and all Addenda is to be acknowledged in the spaces provided on the Form of 

Proposal.  
All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 
 
Lesley Monette 
Purchasing Agent 
 
c. Peter Kryger 
 File # 2017-RFP-30  (End of Addendum # 2) 
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